
 

 
 

EXECUTIVE DECISION DAY NOTICE 
 
 
 

Executive Member for Policy, Resources and Economic 
Development Decision Day 
 

Date and Time Thursday, 28th July, 2022 at 2.00 pm 
  
Place Remote Decision Day 
  
Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk 
  
Carolyn Williamson FCPFA 
Chief Executive 
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ 
 
 
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
 
This decision day is being held remotely and will be recorded and broadcast live via the 
County Council’s website. 
 

AGENDA 
  
DEPUTATIONS 
 
 To receive any deputations notified under Standing Order 12.  

  
KEY DECISIONS (NON-EXEMPT/NON-CONFIDENTIAL) 
 
 None 

  
NON KEY DECISIONS (NON-EXEMPT/NON-CONFIDENTIAL) 
  
1. THE LEADER’S COMMUNITY GRANTS  (Pages 3 - 14) 
 
 To consider a report of the Director of Culture, Communities and 

Business Services regarding grant applications received for the Leader’s 
Community Grants Fund. 
  

2. APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES: AREA-BASED 
COMMITTEES AND PANELS, STATUTORY JOINT COMMITTEES 
AND PARTNERSHIP BOARDS  (Pages 15 - 18) 

 
 To consider a report of the Chief Executive regarding appointments to 

Outside Bodies: Area-based Committees and Panels, Statutory Joint 
Committees and Partnership Boards. 
  

Public Document Pack



EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
 RECOMMENDATION: 

  
That the public be excluded from the meeting during the following item of 
business, as it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public 
were present during this item there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information within Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972, and further that in all the circumstances of 
the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information, for the reasons set out in the 
report.  
  
  

KEY DECISIONS (EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL) 
  
3. STRATEGIC LAND UPDATE REPORT – BOTLEY FIELDS OPTION 

AGREEMENT ISSUES  (Pages 19 - 30) 
 
 To consider an exempt report of the Director of Culture, Communities 

and Business Services regarding the option agreement for Botley Fields. 
 

   
NON KEY DECISIONS (EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL) 
 
 None 

 
 
 
 
ABOUT THIS AGENDA: 
On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages. 
 
ABOUT THIS MEETING: 
The press and public are welcome to observe the public sessions of the 
decision day via the webcast. 



  

   
 

 
HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
Decision Report 

 

Decision Maker: Executive Member for Policy, Resources and Economic 
Development 

Date: 28 July 2022 

Title: The Leader’s Community Grants 

Report From: Director of Culture, Communities and Business Services 

 

Contact name: 
Emma Noyce 

Tara McFadyen 

Tel:    0370 779 8373  Email: emma.noyce@hants.gov.uk  

 

Purpose of this Report 

1. The report considers three applications for grants from the Leader’s 
Community Grant Fund 2022/23. 

Recommendation 

2. That the Executive Member for Policy, Resources and Economic 
Development approves three grants totalling £39,850 from the Leader’s 
Community Grant Fund 2022/23 to cultural and community organisations in 
Hampshire as outlined in Appendix 2. 

 

Executive Summary 

3. Three organisations have applied for grants through the Leader’s Community 
Grant Fund 2022/23 and the funds requested total £48,912. The report 
considers the applications and recommends awards totalling £39,850. The 
recommended awards can be met from within existing budget provision. 

Contextual Information 

4. The purpose of this grant stream is to fund projects which provide community 
benefit and help local communities thrive and/or to help local organisations 
become financially self-supporting and not reliant on public sector funding.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 1

mailto:emma.noyce@hants.gov.uk


  

   
 

 
Full details, including what the County Council can and cannot fund, are set 
out in Appendix 1.  

5. Three applications have been submitted for consideration. Details are set out 
in Appendix 2. 

Finance 

6. The recommended awards can be met from within existing budget provision. 

7. The total budget available for the Leader’s Community Grant in 2022/23 is 
£673,000 (this figure includes unspent allocation carried over from 2021/22).  
If the recommendations in this report are approved, the total awarded in this 
financial year is £172,630, leaving a balance of £500,370 remaining. 

Consultation and Equalities 

8. A high-level Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken. The grants 
are intended to have a positive impact and advance equality.  

9. The corporate terms and condition of grant require that any organisation in 
receipt of funding shall ensure that at all times it complies with the Equality 
Act 2010 if applicable and shall ensure that it does not discriminate against 
any person or persons on the basis of protected characteristics.  

Climate Change Impact Assessment 

10. Hampshire County Council utilises two decision-making tools to assess the 
carbon emissions and resilience of its projects and decisions. These tools 
provide a clear, robust, and transparent way of assessing how projects, 
policies and initiatives contribute towards the County Council’s climate 
change targets of being carbon neutral and resilient to the impacts of a 2℃ 
temperature rise by 2050. This process ensures that climate change 
considerations are built into everything the Authority does. 

11. The carbon mitigation tool decision tree indicates it is not suitable for the 
assessment of a programme. The decisions in this report are financial 
decisions in relation to a programme of one-off grant opportunities. Therefore, 
the tool is not suitable for this Climate Change Impact Assessment and has 
not been used. 

 

Other Key Issues 

Page 4



  

   
 

12. Legal Implications: Section 1 (1) of the Localism Act gives the County Council 
the power to do anything that individuals may generally do.  This includes the 
power to make grants.’ 

Page 5



 
 

   
 

REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Strategic Plan 
 

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity: 

no 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 
lives: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

yes 

 
Other Significant Links 

Links to previous Member decisions:  

Title Date 

Leader’s Community Grants – Revised Criteria and 
Management 

8 July 2021 

  

  

 
 

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 

None  

Page 6

https://democracy.hants.gov.uk/documents/s76582/2021-07-08%20FINAL%20EMPR%20Leaders%20Grants%20-%20Proposals%20for%20Criteria%20and%20Management.pdf
https://democracy.hants.gov.uk/documents/s76582/2021-07-08%20FINAL%20EMPR%20Leaders%20Grants%20-%20Proposals%20for%20Criteria%20and%20Management.pdf


  Appendix 1 

   
 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 
 

1. Equality Duty 

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
(‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 

- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected 
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation); 

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it; 

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 
do not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 

- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons 
sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic; 

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it; 

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionally low. 

2. Equalities Impact Assessment: 

2.1. A high-level Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken. The grants 
are intended to have a positive impact and advance equality. 

  

  

Page 7



  Appendix 1 

   
 

 

Leader’s Community Grants – Criteria 
 
What is funded?  
The purpose of the scheme is to fund one-off, time limited projects which:  

• provide community benefit and help local communities thrive 
• help local organisations become financially self-supporting and not reliant 

on public sector funding  
 
Proposals will be particularly welcomed where they can demonstrate how they: 

• respond to the Climate Emergency, as declared by the Council in June 
2019  

• reduce demand for Council services 
 
Proposals must support the priorities and outcomes of Hampshire County 
Council’s Serving Hampshire - Strategic Plan for 2021 - 2025. It forms the 
cornerstone of all strategies and plans across departments and service areas. It 
features four key aims:  

• Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic growth and 
prosperity  

• people in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent lives  
• people in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse environment  
• people in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, inclusive communities  

 
Applications can be made for over £1,000 to a maximum of £25,000 and may be 
for activity costs and/or capital costs.  Applications in excess of £25k will 
occasionally be considered in exceptional circumstances.  
 
Secured match funding or clear evidence of seeking match funding is highly 
desirable. Organisations should have also applied to local District or Parish 
Councils where local funding opportunities exist.  
 
Supporting documentation will be required for all applications.  
 
 
Who can apply? 
Organisations wishing to apply must be properly constituted with clear and 
effective governance and management structures. They must be delivering 
activities or services that benefit Hampshire residents. Organisations will not 
normally be eligible for grants where they hold unallocated reserves in excess 
of one year’s running costs. Where it is judged that unallocated reserves are 
unreasonably in excess of what is required or not allocated for legitimate 
purposes, those organisations may receive a reduced grant. All organisations are 
expected to have an agreed reserves policy that addresses their financial risk.  
 
The following organisations are not normally funded under this scheme:  

• individuals  

Page 8

https://www.hants.gov.uk/landplanningandenvironment/environment/climatechange
https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/strategiesplansandpolicies/corporatestrategy


  Appendix 1 

   
 

• services provided solely within the unitary authority areas of Portsmouth 
City Council and/or Southampton City Council 

• other local authorities, including District, Parish and Town Councils  
• commercial/profit making organisations 
• schools, including pre-schools and colleges  
• large, national organisations or ‘household name charities’, including local 

branches  
• political parties or groups affiliated with a political party or from 

lobbying/campaigning organisations. 
• Applications will only be considered from faith groups who can demonstrate 

their facilities are open and used by the local community other than for 
church related activities and then only for works in relation to the Disability 
Discrimination Act 

• Requests may be considered from County wide groups (e.g. Guides, 
Scouts, Hampshire County Youth Orchestra) for specific trips e.g. for an 
international jamboree or cultural tour.  Individual requests will not usually 
be considered. 

• Self-help by organisations is encouraged, and therefore grants are 
normally only a percentage of the sum required to complete a project. 

 
When to apply 
Applications are welcomed at any time and will be dealt with on a ‘first come, first 
served’ basis. Recommendations for awards will be taken to the next available 
Executive Members decision day. This may be up to three months after the 
application is received, in line with meeting schedules. 
 
Projects should be well developed, with match-funding secured, and any 
supported projects will normally be expected to commence within six-months of 
the decision date. All applicants for building works will be expected to evidence 
freehold or to have obtained permission from the landlord. If required, applicants 
will also be expected to have obtained (or engaged in the process of) planning 
permission and/or listed buildings consent (if appropriate) to carry out the works 
before applying. 
 
What is not funded?  
The following projects are not funded under this scheme:  

• the purchase of land  
• capital works that have already been carried out - we cannot 

retrospectively fund projects; grants are awarded for works to be carried 
out in the future  

• general running costs of organisations - these grants are not intended to 
replace shortfalls in service delivery budgets or replace funding for other 
support you may be able to obtain, or that you have obtained from us in the 
past 

• ongoing staff costs - we may fund a fixed-term member of staff or 
consultant to carry out a time-limited piece of work  

• repeat applications to cover previously funded activities/annual applications 
for the same activities 

• profit-making or fund-raising activities, or onward distribution of funds 

Page 9



  Appendix 1 

   
 

• projects which meet the aims of other Hampshire County Council grant 
schemes - where relevant, applications may be transferred to more 
appropriate schemes  

• applications for £1,000 or less - where relevant, these should be directed to 
the Members’ Devolved Grants Scheme. 
 

Organisations will not be awarded more than one grant per financial year and 
previously funded projects must be completed before a new application is 
made. Previous levels of Council funding will be taken into account when 
assessing applications. 
 

 

 

Page 10



       Appendix 2 

 
Grant Funding to Culture and Community Organisations, 2022/23 

 
Organisation 
(District / 
Division) 

Proposal Amount 
Requested 

Amount 
Recommended  

Eastleigh Pride 
(Eastleigh /Eastleigh North) 

  

 Application 
summary 

The organisation seeks funding towards Eastleigh Pride 2022 an inclusive 
event open to all residents of the local and wider Hampshire community to 
be held on 10th September 2022. The funding will contribute towards first 
aid, marketing costs, event insurance, event decorations, merchandise, 
security, acts/performers, toilets, fencing, bins, lighting and a photographer. 
The event aims to promote inclusivity and foster good relations within the 
LGBTQ+ community, and the wider community. Various business and 
organisations have been invited to attend and it is hoped these will offer 
education and insight about LGBTQ+ issues, to help foster acceptance and 
understanding and celebrate Eastleigh and Hampshire's diversity. The 
event will also help tackle social isolation and improve wellbeing and 
mental health by encouraging self-expression.  
Note: The organisation received £610 from Councillor Parker Jones in 
2021/22 towards Eastleigh Pride 2021 and £610 from Councillor Park in 
2021/22 towards Eastleigh Pride 2021 
 

£9,900 £2,850 

Reach 3000 Hampshire residents are expected to benefit. 
Funding (inc 
match) 

The total event costs are £9,900 and the organisation has committed 
£1,600 of its own funding. They have secured £1,600 from Councillor Park, 
£500 from Councillor Parker-Jones (HCC Member grants) and £1,000 from 
Unite. They have have approached Utilita, Southern Water, Radio Taxi's 
and Southwestern Railway for additional sponsorship (expected outcome 
15/08/2022). They have received a £1,000 in kind donation from Pink 
Broadway. 
 

P
age 11



    Appendix 2 

   
 

Organisation 
(District / 
Division) 

Proposal Amount 
Requested 

Amount 
Recommended  

Local Member 
Comments 

Councillor Park fully supports the application and notes that the 
Eastleigh community especially those who are LGBTQ+ value the 
contribution that Eastleigh pride contributes to Hampshire and the 
Eastleigh area in particular.  Councillor Parker Jones fully supports 
the application stating that it is a very valuable and important event. 

Recommendatio
n/conditions 

It is recommended the organisation is partially awarded £2,850 on condition that the 
remainder of the match funding is secured.  Inclusive of other HCC funding sought  
through Member’s grants, this would bring the total HCC contribution to 50% of 
costs. 

Making Space for Craft Ltd 
(Havant / North East Havant) 

Application 
summary 

The organisation seeks funding to deliver a training programme to 30 
volunteers from local charities, care facilities educational centres and the 
local library and community centre. The training will equip individual 
volunteers with the necessary skills to deliver quality creative sessions 
appropriate to their user group’s needs, within their own organisations with 
minimal cost. They will then be able to deliver their own sessions to their 
service users which will increase health benefits and wellbeing whilst 
providing the opportunity for valuable social interaction for those service 
users. The target groups for this training work with a diverse set of users 
including people experiencing homelessness, people receiving support 
following domestic and other violence and people living with health issues, 
life-shortening conditions, and disabilities within the area of Leigh Park 
which is listed as having wards in the 10% most deprived in the UK. They 
have consulted widely with partner organisations and the programme has 
been developed it in accordance with their specific needs to maximise 
effectiveness. 
The activities will take place in Havant which is an Arts Council 
Priority Place. 

£14,012 £12,000 P
age 12



    Appendix 2 

   
 

Organisation 
(District / 
Division) 

Proposal Amount 
Requested 

Amount 
Recommended  

Note: The organisation received £12,150 from the Short Break Activities 
Programme for Children with Disabilities 2020/21 towards Reach Out, 
(decision day 24/02/2021). 
£3,810 from The Waste Prevention Community Grant Fund 2022/23 
towards Make New & Mend, (decision day 24/03/2022). 
£544 from Councillor Branson towards Reach Out Celebration, (decision 
day TBC) 
 

Reach 150 Hampshire residents are expected to benefit plus ongoing training 
delivered through legacy. 

Funding (inc 
match) 

The total project costs are £23,596 and the organisation has committed 
£350 of their own funds. They have secured £915 from the Garfield 
Weston Foundation, £915 from Trusthouse and £408 from Moneybarn. 
They have received £ 6,930 in kind donations from volunteer time and 
expenses.  
 

Local Member 
Comments 

Councillor Branson has been invited to comment. 

Recommendatio
n/conditions 

It is recommended the organisation is partially awarded £12,000 on condition that it 
secures the remainder of the funding from other sources of match funding.  This 
represents approximately 50% of project costs.   

 

SPUD 
(New Forest / Brockenhurst) 

Application 
summary 

The organisation seeks funding toward capital costs associated with the 
creation of a dedicated, artist led space (The Living Room). The space will 
enable it to deliver creative opportunities for vulnerable members of the 
community struggling with mental health problems and other marginalised 
individuals, many of whom have become increasingly isolated as a result of 
the pandemic. Spud has worked closely with a range of organisations and 
individuals over four years to develop the project, including care providers, 

£25,000 £25,000 

P
age 13



    Appendix 2 

   
 

Organisation 
(District / 
Division) 

Proposal Amount 
Requested 

Amount 
Recommended  

social prescribers, and hArt (mental health charity). The project will enable 
the organisation to target hard to reach groups that it has yet to fully 
engage with, and the activities provided will increase wellbeing for those 
groups. The Living Room will also be rented out as a workshop space for 
other members of the community to generate income which will provide 
longer term financial sustainability.  
The activities will take place in the New Forest which is an Arts 
Council Priority Place. 
 

Reach Approximately 840 Hampshire Residents are expected to benefit annually.  
Funding (inc 
match) 

The total project costs are £146,500 and include funding towards a project 
manager however they are seeking funding only for the capital element of 
the works so total eligible project costs are £134,000. The organisation 
have committed £6,000 of their own funds. They have secured £12,500 
from the Charles Burnett III Memorial Fund and a further £3,000 from 
private donations. They hope to secure £95,000 from the Arts Council 
England and have received a £5,000 in kind donation of timber supplies. 
 

Local Member 
Comments 

Councillor Mans has been invited to comment. 
 

Recommendatio
n/conditions 

It is recommended the organisation is awarded up to 19% of total eligible project 
costs to a maximum of £25,000 on condition that a business plan is developed and 
submitted and match funding is secured. 

 Totals £48,912 £39,850 

 

P
age 14



 

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Executive Decision Record 
 

Decision Maker:  Executive Member for Policy, Resources and Economic 
Development 

Date of Decision: 28 July 2022 

Decision Title:  Appointments to Outside Bodies: Area-based Committees and 
Panels, Statutory Joint Committees and Partnership Boards 

Report From:  Chief Executive  

Contact name: Louise Pickford  

Tel: 03707791898 Email: louise.pickford@hants.gov.uk 
 

  
1.  The Decision: (PROPOSED):  
 
a) In accordance with Part 1: Chapter 12 of the Constitution, that the Executive 

Member for Policy, Resources and Economic Development be requested to 
make appointments to Statutory Joint Committees and Partnership Boards as 
detailed below.  The term of office to expire in May 2025 unless otherwise stated: 

 
 

Name of 
Statutory Joint 
Cttee/Partnership 
Board 

Description Previous 
Appointment(s) 

Appointment 
until May 
2025 

    

Hampshire and Isle of 
Wight Local 
Government 
Association 
(HIOWLGA)  
 
(4 plus 2 deputies) 

The Association 
provides a 
structure for 
collaboration 
between local 
authorities in 
Hampshire, 
Portsmouth, 
Southampton and 
Isle of Wight 
 

Keith Mans  
Rob Humby   
Steve Forster   
Jan Warwick  
 
Jonathan Glen 
(Deputy)  
Adrian Collett  
(Deputy) 
 

1 vacancy for 
Keith Mans 

Hampshire 
Association of Local 
Councils 
(1) 
 
 

HALC is a 
membership 
organisation that 
provides support 
and representation 
for local councils 

Edward Heron  

Page 15

Agenda Item 2

mailto:louise.pickford@hants.gov.uk


 

 

Project Integra 
Strategic Board  
(1 plus 1 deputy)  
 

Project Integra 
provides an 
integrated 
approach to waste 
disposal in 
Hampshire 
 

Jan Warwick 
 
Rob Humby 
(deputy) 
 

Replacement for 
deputy 

Solent Freeport 
Consortium Ltd Board 
(1) 
 

The Solent 
Freeport is a major 
opportunity for the 
UK as it seeks to 
strengthen its 
trading position 
and develop new 
trading 
relationships 
 

Leader of the 
Council 
(Keith Mans) 

 

Solent Transport SJC  
(1 plus 1 Deputy) 

Solent Transport 
provides 
leadership, 
strategy and 
direction which 
helps deliver 
transport 
improvements 
supporting the 
sustainable 
development of 
the Solent area 
 

Rob Humby  
 
Jan Warwick 
(Deputy)  
  

Replacement for 
Cllr Humby 

Whitehill and Bordon 
Strategy Group [was 
Board] 
(1) 
 

To bring the key 
strategic partners 
together to work 
towards delivery of 
the successful  
regeneration of 
Whitehill & Bordon 
in accordance with 
an agreed strategy 
and approach 

Rob Humby  

 
 
2.    Reason for the decision: 
 
2.1   To maintain County Council representation on bodies within the community. 
 
  
3.  Other options considered and rejected: 
 

Page 16



 

3.1. Not to make appointments, which would cease County Council representation.  
 
 
4.  Conflicts of interest: 
 
4.1. Conflicts of interest declared by the decision-maker: None 
 
4.2. Conflicts of interest declared by other Executive Members consulted:  
 
 
5.  Dispensation granted by the Conduct Advisory Panel: none.  
 
6.  Reason(s) for the matter being dealt with if urgent: not applicable. 
 
7.  Statement from the Decision Maker:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved by:  
 
 
 
--------------------------------------------------                Date: 28 July 2022 
Councillor Rob Humby  
Executive Member for Policy, Resources and 
Economic Development 

 

 

  

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19

Agenda Item 3
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 The Leader’s Community Grants
	2 Appointments to Outside Bodies: Area-based Committees and Panels, Statutory Joint Committees and Partnership Boards
	3 Strategic Land update report – Botley Fields Option agreement issues

